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Call to Order

Senator Kalter called the meeting to order. 
Senator Kalter: We apologize for the confusing agenda. Just so that everybody is on the same page tonight, we have three items that we are going to talk about. First is a little discussion about the Academic Freedom Ethics and Grievance Committee Policy. The second is we are going to do the information session for the proposed dismissal article, proposed article XIV and then we are going to end the night with the action items and I will talk about which ones we are going to be doing there, but you got those in your mail. We are going to try to give about 20 minutes for each of the three main items on the agenda and so, for the first two at least, we are going to cut short any discussion that goes over that mark and then carry those over to April 6th if we need to. 

Questions for the long-term consideration of the Faculty Caucus regarding AFEGC (Senator Kalter)
Senator Kalter: I have a little bit of a long comment to frame and start the discussion on AFEGC. Bear with me on this. It is a long policy. So it is on our agenda tonight for discussion prior to be forwarded to the Caucus out of the Rules Committee for three distinct reasons. The first reason is that at the beginning of my Chairship last year, the Chair of the AFEGC identified to me a pretty serious problem in the technical writing of the policy. The problem basically places every single hearing committee of the AFEGC into an endless loop between what they term in the policy a preliminary hearing and a formal hearing. I spoke last week to Lisa Huson, our University Counsel, about this issue and she did confirm that it is a legal concern. Anybody who might sue the university could assail us for not following our own policy because it is impossible to follow and for lack of clarity of that policy. So this does put a little bit of time pressure on certain parts of the policy for revision sooner rather than later. So that is the first question or one of the questions. 
The second reason is that the provost representative on Rules Committee has identified some issues that require a great deal of research and a great deal more research than we have time for this year. So that puts those two things into conflict. That time pressure on the one side and things that need to be researched on the other. So we need to research things like what do other universities do? What does the AAUP recommend? What is the legal environment for non-faculty who teach in higher education classrooms or who engage in research? Do they have academic freedom and how does that get protected? Part of that research is surveying this Faculty Caucus on your views. I think it is also important that we send it to the Chairs Council and the Deans Council at some point to get their views and allow people some time to think about the issue over the summer. We want to make a policy that is legally airtight in protecting academic freedom and making sure that it protects it adequately, especially because one of the things that was mentioned was that students in those classrooms need to make sure that their instructor is protected. We also have another issue that is somewhat related. We also need to set a reasonable statute of limitations on academic due process for persons who allege that they lost their faculty job already through either a coerced resignation and an actual dismissal or nonreappointment as a result of an academic freedom violation or an ethics problem or some other grievable offence that didn’t have an adequate avenue for due process. Just for your information, this has occurred historically. I can’t go into any details about it beyond the fact that there was once a serious break down and a right to access a particular grievance process and that called into question the voluntary nature of the resignation. 
Third, in the course of revising these kinds of long and complicated policies, committees often identify areas for revision that are not really straightforward, either philosophically or practically speaking. As we have done in a couple of other instances such as the General Education revision a couple of years ago and the financial exigency questions, we thought it would be helpful to get some feedback or direction from the full body to give the committee additional guidance and that is one of cores of tonight’s discussion. So this revision—I think some of you know this—has been underway through stops and starts over the course of at least two years. Of course, that never means that it was being worked on weekly by hordes of the weary and woe begotten. It has been sort of taken up and put down because of the volume of the college bylaws that Rules Committee had to get through. The subcommittee that was working on the revision, which is Senators Chebolu, Cox and Crowley, they weren’t able to pick up last year’s work until about very late fall or early spring and they have been working incredible long hours, extremely diligently to try to compare and fold together input from several AFEGC Chairs, two Senate Chairs, the Provost’s Office and last year’s Rules Committee and there are also several conflicts among all of the voices there. So what I would say is that everybody knows a different piece of this elephant, but nobody knows the elephant and that is basically the nature of any committee that deals with a very highly confidential process. One of the potentially promising changes that you kind of previewed this, Senator Crowley, that we will probably be making as we are thinking of dividing the policy into five or more sections, somewhat like our Code of Ethics, the way that appears on our website, so that we do not ever, ever again have to revise all 12 pages or over 5,000 words of policy anymore. If we revise it, we can just do it a little bit at a time. 
So three things for our questions tonight. First, what advice can we gather regarding the questions about the malicious charges section, the voluntary conciliator question and the role of the Executive Committee in the appeals chain and you have got that on one of your documents towards the end for tonight. In other words, it is the second half of the set of questions. The second thing is I was able to go back to identify in the Senate archives that there used to be wording embedded in the policy that allowed tenured/tenure-track faculty and it also would include non-negotiated non-tenure-track faculty to grieve violations of policy or other issues that would be beyond the Code of Ethics or academic freedom issues and that would be like AP, civil service and non-tenure-track negotiated faculty. It seems to me that it was either a very serious mistake in judgment or a serious mistake in editing that removed that wording. One of the things I will mention here is that when I was doing this historical tracking, the President’s Office at a certain point in history had a totally different policy than the one that had been just worked on the previous year. So somehow that got into the mix and made everything very complicated. So the one question is restoring the wording about grievances to clarify that tenure-track faculty can grieve. Is that a legal concern? I would say that it is, especially because other universities have such open-ended grievance policies. It says in our ISU Constitution that we are supposed to have a grievance committee. I spoke with Lisa Huson also about that and she basically indicated that she is concerned just that it be clear. She doesn’t care if we include all grievances or narrow it down, but it just has to be clear what we are doing. My concern is that everybody else, all other categories of persons who work at ISU, have an open-ended, undefined category or a way to grieve and the only thing that the policies say is that you’re excluding certain things rather than defining precisely what you can grieve. For some reason, tenure-track faculty is the exception to that rule as well as I said non-negotiated NTTs. 
Finally, since we are already planning to work on the policy in the fall, given the legal liability issue, should we try to move some version of the revision to action this spring in the caucus while continuing to plan to work more on it in the fall? Now you might have heard that Senator Crowley said that the first four sections have been moved out of committee, so that may help with that question, but we also could get to our second April meeting and not get there. So if that would be the case, would we want to make just the revisions that would get them out of the endless loop so to speak. So that is what I have to say. Open it up for discussion and maybe we can start on that last question. What people think about how much haste we are in or not, whether we are in a time crunch or not on this.
Senator Cox: I think even piecemeal, greater clarity will serve us all. So the sooner the better even if it is just a portion at a time because each of those sections does have its unique philosophical, political environment or context and will take quite a bit of time. So if we wait until it is all done, some of us will be long gone and we will have to start over once more perhaps. I don’t know. So I would argue for deliberating and agreeing upon portions as we discuss them.

Senator Kalter: Okay, great and it sounds like you are suggesting that even if we pass something at the end of this year, it doesn’t mean we can’t then study certain things about it even next year and say we clarified it this much, now here’s the rest.

Senator Cox: Yes.

Senator Kalter: Okay. Thank you. Anybody else? Senator Stewart says that’s good. Alright, so basically we are going to feel our way, but it sounds like since we have got four sections coming in and we might have section D. Unfortunately, the legal part is in section D, so that is the part where we may get to the second April meeting and find we may have to make a vote just to clarify as opposed to going through the whole extensive set of revisions, but we might not. It may be that Rules will be able to bring that to us soon enough.
Senator Cox: Can I ask a procedural question? So the committee will forward a portion as a draft, including the first three or four sections to the Executive Committee. Maybe solicit feedback. It may come back to our committee. Is that right or will at that point the Executive Committee feel open discussion in caucus is important?

Senator Kalter: I am not sure we can answer that part of the question before Exec sees it, but I think Exec will have that conversation understanding that it seems as though we are moving towards let’s clarify even if we keep having to work on it. So I can’t say. Nobody can speak, not even Exec can speak for Exec on that question until we see what’s there and discuss it, but I would anticipate that we are probably going to put it on the floor. It’s hard to say. Let me move back one step to the grievance issue. Senator Bantham, I saw you nodding your head about open-ended grievance. Do you have anything to add on that?
Senator Bantham: No, I must have been nodding my head about something else.

Senator Kalter: Any comments about the grievance part?

Senator Crowley: I have been examining peer institution documents and the grievance is indeed a very open-ended descriptor. It would seem wise that we would maintain flexibility and not everything is about academic freedom and not everything is about ethics and then there is this open-ended place that people can express some kind of complaint about, and it is not about ethics or academic freedom. So our peer institutions have terminology that supports the notion that we will include grievance and we would actually clarify what it is and how we would approach dealing with grievances. Another thing I might add is that in the old policy, in the unrevised policy, the one we have been working from, it has indeed the wording grievance as a separate thing from academic freedom issues and from ethics issues. So I think we would be very wise to keep it and clarify it, just like our attorney would advise us. Just make it clear. What are we talking about?

Senator Kalter: Further comments about that?

Senator Daddario: I agree that having a third category like grievance as an open-ended forum is important just for a slightly different reason. I would say that it’s important not to cram everything into academic freedom or ethics because then all of a sudden, those words start losing their meaning when everything fits into. You keep hearing the word academic freedom, academic freedom, ethics. It starts to evacuate those categories of their specific meanings. The grievance category gives a place for other and I see it as very important to have it.
Senator Kalter: Any other comments or observations about that?

Senator Wortham: Wouldn’t we need to have some provision in the policy that describes, explains exactly what this open-ended grievance is and distinguishes it apart from academic freedom grievances and ethics grievances as well as a process by which, a protocol that handles these kinds of complaints that may or may not be, require different procedure. I don’t know, but in some way, this open-ended grievance would have to have with it, it seems to me, the same level of procedure and protocol that academic freedom and ethics, I am reluctant to call them grievances now since there is this new category called grievances. We would need to give those two items some other designation.

Senator Kalter: I think that would be preferable. So in looking back at the history, there used to be wording for this and at one point sometime in the early 2000s when Senator Crothers was the chair, that wording somehow dropped out, but in the minutes to the debates, it is very clear that both Senator Crothers and Senator Presley, who was the provost at the time, did not intend for grievance to be taken out. They are talking about it as one of the three things, academic freedom, ethics and then grievance as a separate set of complaints. So that is very interesting and Senator Crothers is on record as saying this really does not change anybody’s rights. So as far as I can glean, it was an accident of that history or maybe good will, but mistaken judgment in removing the actual wording. It is very hard to tell what happened.
Senator Wortham: It is my understanding that they tried to combine two separate committees into one and the language of both became totally convoluted. That is why it has to be cleaned up because we have got two sets of issues in one document, in one policy.

Senator Kalter: Yes, I think that is part of it. I think that also some other types of revisions were happening apparently responding to some case that had gone through in a previous year and so that then made it muddier than it should have been. One of the things going from what Senator Daddario said that I am concerned about is that if everything is either academic freedom or ethics, sometimes there are differences of opinion and interpretation of policies like the Intellectual Property policy or whatever policy it might be or a past practice where it is nobody’s fault and everybody is acting in good faith. So people might be reluctant to bring an ethics case in those cases because those tend to be quite personal and about well you were unfair to me. You did something so offensive that we can’t work it out. If you fold everything into that rather than well how is this supposed to be going. How is this supposed to be interpreted and giving people academic due process for that, then you come into difficulty. I do think, yes, we need to find wording and actually we have some pretty good wording just in the AP and civil service grievance policies that could be adapted and adopted into ours that would help. It might not be quite enough, but it would be a good direction. We can also look back to the way the policy was worded in the past and see if that might be adequate.
Senator Wortham: But we would have to make something very distinctive called grievances that is different than the academic freedom and ethics. Again, I guess I have to say complaints because the word grievance open-ended grievance is another separate…
Senator Kalter: I think that the procedural part of that is up to the committee, but that the jurisdiction part should probably include a separate line. So then the Rules Committee can decide is the procedural part for ethics basically the same as the procedural part for grievance and if so, just say that and if not then write a separate one. So that is I think up to batting out in the committee, but certainly the jurisdiction part probably needs to be very much more clear.
Senator Huxford: Just a thought.  You are really arguing for a miscellaneous bucket, aren’t you?  And there’s a lot to be said for a miscellaneous bucket. You could partly define it through examples. Here are some examples, but not limited to these and do it that way.  At least that is a starting point. I don’t know what those examples would be like, but somebody must know.
Senator Kalter: I think I articulated one of them just now that you might have a policy like Intellectual Property or what have you. That’s the one that is in my brain right now, where you have legitimately different interpretations and so you are trying to bat out what was the intent and what is fair to do and all of that. Sounds like we have a pretty good plan on that part and on sort of the pace. There were a couple of questions that got brought up about malicious charges, voluntary conciliator and the role of the Executive Committee. I am not sure I will be able to quickly call up my copy. Sorry about this. So with regard to malicious charges actually I am going to give that part to Senator Cox because she has some very important observations about that. The question about voluntary conciliators is should there be one in this committee? If so, should it be just one? Should it be anybody but the chair? Should the chair be able to play that role or is the ombudsperson as a separate body sufficient, right, the Ombudsperson Council? So those are the main questions about that one and we can rehearse some of the philosophical questions about all of those. The role of the Executive Committee is one that would be very good for the next discussion in Rules because that is part of Section D. In the policy, there is a hearing committee and if either the respondent or complainant doesn’t like that, they can appeal it to the appeals committee. Then if they don’t like the appeals committee decision, what happens right now is that it goes to the Executive Committee of the Academic Senate, that is the faculty members of it, and that committee decides whether it goes to the caucus or to the provost. Some people are uncomfortable with that and for very understandable reasons. Is there a good reason to seat that much power in only six people? Also the Executive Committee is a small body, so right now, there is no provision for recusing those who are in the same department even though the entire policy recuses everybody in the same department all the way up the line until then and there is also no way to recuse people in the caucus who are in the same department, but the main question there is whether the Executive Committee should be a step that is a decision making step or whether if somebody appeals out of the appeals hearing committee, it goes directly to the Faculty Caucus regardless of anything. Senator Cox, do you want to articulate the malicious charges part?
Senator Cox: But you did it so well, Senator Kalter. I think you left me only one thing to add to that and that has to do not just with the idea that an important decision rests with such a small body, but the way we have the policy currently, that small body has the discretion to pass on the complaint to the caucus in whatever case or to make that decision and to file its report to the provost. My concern was in what cases would the Exec want to keep that within their own body and in what cases would they be willing to share it with the larger. I think the argument against sharing with the caucus is, I think I have heard the argument that more eyes would see the case, more people would see it and therefore maybe something would be leaked. I think that was one of the arguments against that, but that I think undermines the trust we have with one another to begin with and there are a number of critical issues, sensitive issues, that we deal with and that we trust our body with. So I don’t see that as a valid argument for not forwarding a case to the larger body.
Senator Kalter: Thank you. Any comments about that? Any observations about that? I think to play the devil’s advocate to Senator Cox’s advocacy. One of the concerns was that confidentiality. Another one was is sending an appeal to a larger body giving a person basically an avenue to publicize a grievance or an ethics complaint to just more people, right? In other words, should the Executive Committee have any role in deciding that the appeals committee said the right thing and the hearing committee did the right thing? Is there really any point beyond the fact the fact that the person just wants not to have it rest, essentially. One of the things that that brings out is that there is no clear wording in the policy even if the Executive Committee had that role, what kind of decision they should make and how. So it becomes an open-ended, dependent on who might sit on that committee as opposed to something that is rule driven.

Senator Cox: I think in response to that concern, we might say that the caucus is a more representative body in terms of discipline and experiences that we have and that that might provide another forum for the complainant to have his or her case heard in. I think one more step. I think that that would decrease liability of the university. It would increase maybe justice or fairness by having again a more diverse perspective. I don’t want to say trained perspective, but some of us may have some experience that we won’t find on the Exec Committee.
Senator Kalter: What do other people feel about that? Is there a value to having a mediated step with Exec making the decision whether to send something to caucus or is it more of a value to just have it automatically routed to caucus if somebody wants it to?

Senator Marx: My thought was that the Exec Committee could decide whether or not the basis for appeal is valid and then if they decide it is, then forward it to the caucus for presentation.
Senator Kalter: So you would favor retaining the step that is in there now.

Senator Marx: Yes.

Senator Kalter: Possibly clarifying it but retaining it.

Senator Marx: To decide whether or not the appeal is a valid one or if it just meant to keep the process going.

Senator Chebolu: I personally think that because the Executive Committee is a very small body, it’s important to bring situations to the bigger floor, the caucus, and especially in some cases where there may be conflict of interest if the complainant is in the same department as the Chair of the Executive Committee. That might lead to a very delicate situation. So I think it is important for the bigger caucus to view the matter and make a more unbiased decision.

Senator Kalter: I actually think just pulling that out, I think that regardless of whether the Exec Committee is a mediating step or not, there should be a provision written into the policy for when the Chair of the Senate is in the same department as either the complainant or the respondent so that that person always has to recuse him or herself from the case and hand it over to the next person. Usually the Chair of the Senate will know about the case and will probably receive the case, so they may know about it, but it seems to me that it is a huge conflict of interest, especially in a process that has always kept the department out of the hearings and the appeals to then allow it to go to anybody at the next step who might be in the same department because the point is to keep that confidential, to keep bias either favorable or unfavorable to either of the parties out of that process. Other observations?

Senator Huxford: Could you leave it to the accused?  Which one would they prefer?  Either the Exec or the full caucus?
Senator Kalter: That’s an interesting question and by the way, next time, could you talk into the microphone just so that…I can hear you, but I just realized that you weren’t. You are suggesting that it be the appellant’s decision, not anybody else’s decision.

Senator Huxford: Right. There are reasons for and against for them, so let them work out the pros and cons of it.

Senator Kalter: Okay.
Senator Dawson: It is very similar to the judged by a jury or by the judge. What do you want? If you get one person on the jury to see it your way…I don’t know. Making a choice, that’s a possibility. I don’t know.

Senator Kalter: I could imagine that that could game the system if the person thinks that there is somebody favorable on the committee, but in any case, we really ought to have those people recusing themselves regardless if they have a relationship.

Senator Stewart: Just a real quick observation. If it goes to the caucus, then it is much more public and if it is a sensitive issue, the person might not want it to go that far, or the two parties might not want it to go.

Senator Kalter: And actually I think Senator Stewart might be suggesting that both parties should have that choice, not just one. Is that right?

Senator Stewart: Yeah.

Senator Kalter: But that would also be problematic of course.

Senator Stewart: Yeah, if one wanted to go to Exec and the other one to caucus, that would be a problem.

Senator Kalter: That would be a big problem.

Senator Winger: None of this envisions a unanimous decision, right?

Senator Kalter: On the part of the hearing committees?

Senator Winger: Right.

Senator Kalter: Not necessarily. It could be unanimous all the way up and somebody is still appealing just like…

Senator Winger: No, but I mean. It is a disjunction. It is not like the jury exactly. You don’t have to just turn one?

Senator Kalter: Oh, I see what you are saying. Yes, you are right. It could potentially be a majority, minority. That is also something that is not written into our policy right now. There is an assumption that the hearing committee will agree with another. The hearing committee is three people. The appeals committee is five people. So there is no real provision for what happens if three of the five people on the appeals committee go one way and two of them go another. That potentially has been a good thing in the sense that perhaps that has led them to go to consensus, but it is something that for whatever reason is not in the policy right now.

Senator Ellerton: One of my concerns with giving the opportunity for the appeal to be heard by the full caucus is to some complainants, and this is a large body that would be very, very daunting to some and may mean that they either pull back. I don’t know. It could have an effect on the appeal, on their going forward with the appeal if they knew that it was going to go to caucus. That would be a concern. It is not the intent obviously, but it could be a concern to a defendant.
Senator Kalter: So Senator Ellerton, it sounds like you are arguing that the Exec Committee would be valuable because it would be able to say to the appellant we do think you have a good case or a potential case at least and so we are going to give it to caucus for a decision as opposed to then the other possibility would be to say we are going to uphold the decision of the previous committee.

Senator Ellerton: Basically, yes. I like the idea or suggestion of giving a choice, but that can be misused as well. I like the idea of giving a choice, but I still prefer going to Exec Committee, which is a smaller body, bigger and representative of caucus before going straight to caucus simply because it removes…It is daunting. You come into a room like this. How is someone who has never experienced a group as large as this and they are subject to a grievance that they want to explain. It is very difficult.

Senator Kalter: Just to let you guys know, we are going to finish talking about this Exec thing and once we are done with that, we are going to move to the next item because we are over our 20 minutes.

Senator Alcorn: Just real briefly. It seems to me that while I understand the concern about the small body in Exec, we have elected that body so we have placed trust in those people and it seems to me that that is a time when we have to trust that body because it seems that there is a great deal of benefit having the small group at least first.

Senator Kalter: To sum this up, it sounds like we are actually divided on this, that some people feel that Exec would be valuable and others feel that it should go directly to Faculty Caucus. Is that what I am hearing? I think I heard at least two or three people on each side.

Senator Lonbom: I just have a question. I have no idea how often this comes up.
Senator Kalter: In the time I have been on the Senate, since I have been on the Executive Committee I should say, since 2007, once. It is very rare. Senator Stewart says should I take a straw poll. Do people want to participate in a straw poll? How many people feel right now that it would be better to keep Exec involved? 

Senator Crowley: Can you please articulate it really clearly, Chair Kalter?
Senator Kalter: So how many people feel that when somebody appeals the appeals hearing decision that it should go to Exec and they should then make a decision about whether it goes to caucus?

Senator Wortham: Exec should make a decision about sending it to caucus?

Senator Kalter: Right. That is what you are raising your hand on. Thank you. Let me do this all over again. So the first will be raising your hand if you think that Exec should be a mediator that decides yes it should go to caucus or no, it should go directly to the provost. So that is the first vote. The second would be, no, anytime anybody appeals out of the appeals hearing, it goes automatically to caucus regardless of what Exec thinks is right. So if you think that Exec should make the decision, raise your hand. It was obviously a majority, but I wanted to count. It is about 18 or so. Those of you who think it should go directly the caucus. Senator Chebolu. I know Senator Cox, you were arguing for that, yes?
Senator Cox: Yes, but now I am not vacillating between the two choices, but I am thinking about the third option. I am undecided about that. Having the choice made by the complainant to me is attractive.

Senator Kalter: It looked like it was a majority wanted it to stay the same. Minority wanted it to go directly to caucus and/or have the appellant decide. My guess is that everybody would agree that if it stayed the same, we should clarify what Exec is empowered and not empowered to do and all of that. Great. Thank you. We probably have more to talk about there, but hopefully that gave a little bit of feedback, especially, thank you very much about the legal liability issue and the grievance issue. That will help us make good decisions as we go into the end of the year.
03.14.16.01 Statement on Procedural Standards in Faculty Dismissal Proceedings 

Senator Kalter: So now we are going into our regular ASPT discussion and we are going to talk about the proposed dismissal policy and you have by the way a statement from the AAUP on their procedural standards for faculty dismissal. The reason that that is with you is because that is our current policy. It is basically to follow their guidelines. So we are looking right now, this is just the information session on proposed new Article XIV, the termination of appointment of probationary and tenured faculty and do our URC members, would you like to sort of give a run-down of what the changes are and what the procedures would be under this new policy? Sam?
Dr. Catanzaro: Sure, okay. What is proposed to be XIV.A.1 and 2 on probationary faculty, this is essentially, what we usually refer to as non-reappointment, our current ASPT Policy. So it is just highlighted because it has been reorganized into one. In the current version, there’s these sections, and then the general statement that says, “…provides the adequate cause for dismissal of a tenured faculty member” and references that we would use—it doesn’t specifically say AAUP, but it does say national standards.  So it essentially says we’ll do it pretty much the way everybody does, and we’ll be as fair as we can.  And, so, A.1 and A.2 are verbatim what is currently policy; A.3 is new and makes a provision for termination in what would be the extremely rare case that something comes up that’s not part of the regular non-reappointment review cycle.  So, again, nightmare scenarios like someone gets busted dealing heroin, just to pick one example, a serious felony, and the university finds out about it in March, and by our policies the deadline for notifying them of non-reappointment has already passed.  We probably, for lots of reasons, would prefer not to have that person on our faculty for another year while we wait for the next deadline to come up.  So A.3 provides a basis for acting, again, in those extremely unusual circumstances.  I should note that this is not one of these provisions that was written because, dang, this happened last year.  It’s not like this happened.  We don’t anticipate it will happen, but in an increasingly complex world where these kinds of considerations need to be anticipated, we thought it would be helpful to make a policy provision just in case.  So that’s A.  

B is regarding tenured faculty.  B.1 is current language that outlines that dismissal of a tenured faculty and the university needs to demonstrate adequate cause, and the burden of proof is on the institution.  The possible causes we’ve already discussed.  They were listed in the proposed article XI, the general introductory article to disciplinary actions.  So those are things such as lack of fitness to continue in the role of a faculty member, inability to conform to professional standards, malfeasance, and I think there’s some additional language that I’m not remembering exactly, so I’m not going to misquote it.  So that’s 1.  And, again, that’s current policy.  

And then the rest of this lays out a procedure that adheres very closely to the recommended policies of AAUP, identifying timelines, who gets consulted, what gets documented, how the DFSC or SFSC is involved, how the initial review committee is established to initially consider the charges or proposed reasons for dismissal, sending it to the Faculty Review Committee, which is an existing committee and, again, in our current policies, most of their work except for one case in the history of the university is on handling promotion and tenure appeals, but that is also the committee that is charged to hold hearings in dismissal proceedings, and it sort of lays out some of the procedural implications for requirements for that, how it goes to the provost, the opportunity for appeal to the president.  So that’s an overview.  Are there any questions at this point that might make sense for me to answer before you all get into your discussion?

Senator Winger:  Is there any provision for just suspending people?  Because, I’m not clear on how the policy all hangs together, but you don’t want to be in the case where you’re a second layer of adjudication to the civil and criminal courts.  That happens increasingly, and I’m mostly just sort of annoyed by it.  I mean, the reason we have civil and criminal courts is they get to determine guilt and innocence or culpability.  So, can people be on administrative leave pending the outcome of, for instance, your crazy example about the heroin.  Are we going to hold a trial?

Dr: Catanzaro:  No, we wouldn’t hold a trial.

Senator Winger:  Right.

Dr. Catanzaro:  And how we would proceed might depend on when we find out and what we know at that point.  But, yes, there’s…  What number is it?  Is it XIII?

Senator Kalter:  XIII is the Suspensions.

Dr. Catanzaro:  There’s a proposed article on Suspensions.  One could be suspended while the dismissal proceeding is going on or not.  Recent case at the University of Illinois: A faculty member within the last couple years was dismissed, and had been on paid suspension for three years leading up to that.

Senator Winger:  I see.  So the suspension is paid.  Okay.

Dr. Catanzaro:  Almost always, yeah.  

Senator Winger:  Thank you.

Dr. Catanzaro:  You’re welcome.  

Senator Kalter:  Other questions or observations?  I do have sort of a couple of questions that might fall under what you just asked about.  So, I may have misunderstood this when I first read it, but technically speaking, for a probationary faculty member, non-reappointment and dismissal are two distinct things.  

Dr. Catanzaro:  The way this is written, that distinction is made.  So non-reappointment would be the regular review of teaching, research, and service contributions and determining progress toward tenure.  The concept is that there may be very rare cases where it’s in the best interest of the university and its students and the other faculty to dismiss somebody on a timeline that’s different than the non-reappointment.  It may be someone who’s making excellent progress toward tenure in terms of their teaching and research but they’ve done something else that renders them non-tenurable, and arguably, non-employable by us.  

Senator Kalter:  So you would say, then, that XIV.A.1 is discussing non-reappointment whereas XIV.A.3 is defining dismissal for adequate cause?

Dr. Catanzaro:  Yes.

Senator Kalter:  Is that right?

Dr. Catanzaro:  Yes.  So if we were to think of this as a hierarchical concept, if you will, termination is the broader concept, and then there are two subcategories, as you pointed out.  

Senator Ellerton:  It raises a question if there were to be a suspension with pay for a tenure-track person who was partway through the tenure process, maybe even near the end, would that automatically, can there be something written in that should that case then be dismissed and the person be reinstated that they would not then be, that their application for tenure would not be jeopardized because of that time lost.  

Dr. Catanzaro:  I think that, again, we’re going back to Article XIII, so I am looking at it.  I remember we discussed this in the committee, right, Doris?  That an individual who was suspended during their probationary period and was subsequently exonerated would be eligible to apply to stop the clock.  

Senator Ellerton:  And that was basically the question.

Dr. Catanzaro:  Yes.

Senator Kalter:  I’m just going to sort of bring up something that was brought up for another article a little while ago, that it may be a concern to put these under the umbrella of discipline when sometimes non-reappointments, in particular, can happen for non-disciplinary reasons.  It’s just that things aren’t working out, or what have you.  So that may be something to take into consideration.  But, it looks like these are, indeed, considered separate, and they are separate also in AFEGC policy, that there is non-reappointment and then dismissal for cause, and probationary faculty can fall under either one of those.  

The other question I had, there are some areas where this section does deviate from either the dismissal proceedings that we passed out or from the Recommended Institutional Regulations on Academic Freedom and Tenure.  A couple of those make sense.  So, for example, in our system, we are not like the University of Illinois where the Board ultimately signs off on our appointments, like with the Steven Salaita case.  It’s the president.  So one of the things that has happened here is that everything that said “Board” got pushed one step down.  When it says Board in AAUP it becomes President; when it says President, it becomes Provost.  And that makes a lot of sense.  

My question, and this is sort of a question to the whole group, I’m wondering whether in the tenured faculty part in the procedural considerations, right now we have the ability in B.3.b for the recommendation to initiate coming from the department or school or the college or the dean, or it can come from the university administration.  And, that’s a little bit strange.  It’s a little problematic, I think.  I wondered why we wouldn’t have it always in the DFSC to retain the authority essentially to recommend initiation of a process.  Because, even in the AAUP recommendations, if the department decided no and the provost thought that they were way out of bounds in deciding no, the provost could say, “Well, we’re going to go ahead and hold a hearing.”  So I’m wondering about the reasoning behind how it is in XIV.B.3.b.  

Dr. Catanzaro:  The reasoning there would be often the provost’s office would, not that it happens often, but when something untoward happens, it often can be the case that the provost’s office will know before the department, and hence the initiation would come from the provost informing the DFSC, and perhaps for reasons related to minimizing risk of liability or wanting to act expeditiously in terms of protecting, say, students from exposure to or contact with an individual who we wouldn’t want them to, based on what we’ve learned, wouldn’t want that to happen.  To be able to have that be initiated by the administration and get the process going and bring the DFSC into that loop.  And, I’m anticipating that you’ll ask and we’ll accept as a friendly amendment that we edit “non-binding advisory recommendation.“ But certainly, the idea is to make sure that there is an elected faculty committee involvement throughout the process, even if it starts with the provost sending a letter to the faculty member, having consulted probably quickly with the dean and the chair, and copying the DFSC that we have become aware of thus and so circumstances and are proceeding in this direction for these reasons.

Senator Kalter:  Let me pitch that question then to the rest of the group.  Do people feel that that was a good way to sort of word and have that process for XIV.B.3.b so that you have sort of two separate possibilities of initiation, given what Sam’s just articulated?  So, let me read those, “If the recommendation to initiate dismissal proceedings comes from the department/school, or college, then the DFSC or the dean of the college in which the faculty member’s locus of tenure resides will submit a letter to the provost describing charges that the university has adequate cause to affect the dismissal of the faculty member.  If the recommendation to initiate dismissal proceedings comes from the university administration, the provost shall inform the faculty member in writing of the charges and provide the dean and the DFSC with a copy.  In such cases the DFSC may choose to communicate in writing a recommendation,” I’m going to take out the “non-binding advisory” just in my comment, “to the provost on the matter.”  

Senator Winger:  What’s the question?

Senator Kalter:  Is that how we would want it to be?  To have, first of all, two separate processes depending on what the origin is, and then, as worded, is this how we want it worded?

Senator Winger:  It seems to be worded correctly.  And, if it makes sense to have those two processes, why wouldn’t it make sense?

Senator Crowley:  I’d just like to ask how well informed might the person be of what’s going on?  Like, would the person know?  Would they just find a letter in their boxes? How well informed would they be?  And, how open is this process? For a new professor who is starting out a career, I would like to believe that we’ve done much work before getting to this point.

Dr. Catanzaro:  To answer the first question, the level of detail for how we might proceed in any particular case, I think, is more granular than is good policy.  But, I think best practice would be probably to set up a meeting, and orally, in person, explain to the faculty member this is the situation.  This is the sort of thing that shouldn’t be a surprise to anybody once it comes.  If it’s, for example, a tenured faculty member where the adequate cause is essentially multiple years of unsatisfactories, cumulative post-tenure reviews that result in remediation plans that are not followed through on, it will not be a surprise to hear the next step is that we’re going to initiate dismissal.  Again, this has not happened.  But I think the experience of the person would be that there’d be a conversation, probably with the chair, perhaps the dean, perhaps someone from the provost’s office, not a big gang of administrators, but a small group, and the letter would be hand delivered after the message was communicated orally.  That, I think, would generally be the way we would think about doing it.  But, again, it might work differently for different people, and we would do what worked best for that person.  Could you repeat the second question?  I wasn’t exactly sure where you were going with that.

Senator Crowley:  It’s about openness in the system.

Dr. Catanzaro:  Openness.  Okay.  So it would be confidential.  You know, the faculty committees involved, be they DFSC or FRC would be bound by confidentiality as always.  Is that the question?  Or, you know, if this gets passed as policy, every faculty member will have a copy of it and access to the policy and knowing what the steps are and who’s involved at what point and what the appeal process is, etc.  So there would be openness in that sense.  The way the process is, when we were working on this, I kind of estimated out how many days or weeks each step in the process would take, and to follow the full thing through all appeals is more than a year.  So, this is a deliberative process.  This is not a policy that will result in a faculty member getting a phone call or an e-mail from a department chair saying, “You need to be in my office at 3:30 today,” and then finding out they’re no longer employed at 3:35.  They might find out that they’re on whatever we would call it, administrative leave or a paid suspension, and that might be news to them.  You know, we would work with them to make clear what the parameters of that were, help them get what they need to get from their office, or whatever, talk about the plan for covering their classes or dealing with their graduate students, or whatever, and have some kind of a plan in place that they could, again, depending on the situation, but in many situations, they may well be invited to participate in that process.  So it wouldn’t be precipitous.  It would not be arbitrary or capricious either.  And then the final disposition is one that would go through a very deliberative process.  So, am I speaking to the questions that you’re raising?

Senator Kalter:  I’m just going to interrupt because we’re hitting our 20-minute time limit on this, so I just want to say a couple things.  I think one of the things that Senator Crowley is bringing up in terms of openness, in XIV.B.3.b the “or the dean of the college” creates a problem in the sense that it can not go through a committee.  There’s a possibility built into the current wording that it would totally bypass any faculty committee, and the dean would be able to initiate.  So that’s one of the things.  But I also wonder if it would just be simpler to say if any individual in the university administration or a DFSC finds a reason to initiate dismissal proceedings that it will go through the DFSC and just have it be very succinct like that.  Then you always have the DFSC initiating, but then the provost can say, “Well, they said not to initiate, but we still think there’s reason to.”  I think I said this already, but pretty much anywhere where we’re deviating from the recommendation, I have some concern, and that includes the FRC as what’s now an appellate body becoming a hearing committee, like a first-order hearing committee.  I think we might want to look at that, and I actually wonder if that might have been my fault in an earlier year suggesting that and then not realizing that that might be a bad idea.  In other words, should FRC always continue to be the appellate bodies for all kinds of cases and have the, what you have as the IRC, the initial review committee, being the hearing body?  Right?  But, in any case, those kinds of cases where the policy deviates or, as Senator Crowley is bringing up, where it’s not open or even where there might be different things going on for different people, I find that to be a concern.  If different things happen for different people, then we don’t really have a policy exactly.   That could be very problematic, I think.

Dr. Catanzaro:  I understand we’re running into a timeframe, but I think in practice, I guess, it depends on the level of granularity of where a difference makes a difference, right.  So I think a good policy allows for some flexibility in how one would handle these very sensitive and certainly no one would be doing this with any degree of relish if it came to this.

Senator Kalter:  I think we should just table this for now, so to speak, even though it’s an information item, and talk about it next time.  Senator Clark, did you want to add something?

Senator Clark:  I did want to add, if I understood, you had a question about whether the process should be initiated by the department or the DFSC or the provost’s office.  I could see a circumstance where, if time was an issue, that your DFSC would not be readily available.  An example, at the end of the semester going into summer, in our department we have program outlines that our DFSC people we just elected this week don’t take office until August.  And, if a member of our current committee is not available or gone for the summer, you’re delaying a decision that is crucial for how the department may implement its fall schedule until those people are available in the summer. 

Senator Kalter:  Do you think that would be a concern for dismissal or for suspension?

Senator Clark:  Well, I think it’s the issue of initiating the process.  As I understood your question is whether or not the process could be initiated at the department level or at a higher administrative level.

Senator Kalter:  Well, according to the way it’s written right now, even if it were initiated at a higher administrative level, the DFSC would still be convened in order to give a recommendation.  So, I’m not sure that it would get around that timing that you’re talking about.  In other words, I think that this policy, regardless of whether it’s changed or stays the same, assumes, in a sense, that the DFSC is on-call in the summer or that the process of dismissal would get delayed until August.  That’s the way I would read it as it’s written right now.  Now, that may be a problem.

Senator Clark:  Well, I think as trying to administer and arrange the schedules for the fall semester, if you have a faculty member who is kind of in suspension whether they’re going to be on leave or not, it kind of ties your hand about how you address covering the semester going forward without any kind of resolution possibility in the summer.  

Senator Kalter:  I see what you’re saying.  I do think that this is very complex, so maybe we should just move it off to table, to the 6th. 

Senator Clark:  I just wanted to present the possibility that, having two different avenues, how to initiate the process makes sense to me.

Senator Kalter:  I do think, though, that academic due process for the individual is probably more important than the schedule of the department frankly, but I understand that is a very important practical consideration.  How would you move forward practically in that event?

Senator Bantham:  If I could just take one second to get a thought out before I forget it before our next meeting.  Given the gravity of this situation and probably the very rare occasions that it occurs, and going back to Sam’s comment, I think in practice for this ever to start, it would be the DFSC, the dean, and a representative from the provost’s office that would be discussing this before it was ever initiated.  So I would see a case to perhaps collapse the two of these and that actually the proposal comes from the result of that discussion between the provost and the dean and the DFSC.  So regardless of whose idea it is first, they have a discussion to come up with the plan to move forward.  Then I think you’ve got all the parties represented.

Senator Cox:  I would say all the parties except for the faculty.  I don’t hear that there’s any deliberation at the provost level initially or at the DFSC in which the faculty has an opportunity to present their case.  Maybe I’ve been filmed and put on YouTube in a drunken party stupor in Mardi Gras.  And, so I get this call into the chair and it says, “You’re suspended,” or “You’re relieved of your duties.”  Do I have an opportunity to either defend myself and say, “Well, that’s my private life,” or “That was my evil twin sister”?  Where does the faculty come in before the process of the hearing itself begins?  And right there it could be a dismissal of the charges if the faculty were incorporated at the beginning rather than get the letter of dismissal.  Right?  

Dr. Catanzaro:  Perhaps this could be made more clear in the policy, but taking the step to initiate dismissal proceedings would come after many conversations about multiple incidents because it’s the burden of the university or the administration, the burden of proof.  Let’s say, the person is no longer able to function as a faculty member for whatever reason.  So the burden of proof is on the university.  We would not try to make that case based on one incident, for example, unless it was really egregious.  And that’s all I can say.

Senator Kalter:  Let me just say that I think that that—and we are going to end this here so we can get to our action items—but that is one of the places where it would be best to follow the written guidelines that are out there for the nation to the letter because it’s already in those guidelines that there should be two attempts at informal resolution, one with the chair, dean, and I think it’s and/or provost, but it basically followed what Senator Bantham said, and then the second one would be with an elected committee, which in our process would be the DFSC.  So by not just basically using this statement as a template and then monkeying with it just a little bit we ended up dropping out some things that are really nicely advisable.  But then also the Recommended Institutional Regulations that AAUP puts out has some important stuff like the right of counsel, the right to certain challenges for people who might sit on those committees who might have a conflict of interest and those kinds of things.  But we are going to end that there.  We’re going to move on, and we will carry it over to April 6th.  But, let’s move on to our action items.  
ASPT Discussion – Action Items

We’ve got article XIII and appendices, and I’m going to start actually by asking for a motion to approve appendices 4 and 5 because I think they’re going to be the easiest ones to approve.  Do I have a motion to approve appendices 4 and 5?  And, by the way, it’s actually 4 and 8, but because we are not approving appendices 5, 6, and 7, essentially what we’re calling appendix 8 will become appendix 5 until the disciplinary stuff has passed.  So do I have a motion to approve appendix 4 and appendix 8 that will become appendix 5?  
Motion: By Senator Ellerton, seconded by Senator Hoelscher, to move Appendices 4 and 8 (to become 5) to action.

Senator Kalter:  Just one little friendly amendment.  There needs to be a title on appendix 8, and it should say Appendix 5.  All of the others have appendix and then a title, and this one does not have the appendix part.  Any debate about those two appendices?  

There was no debate.  Appendices 4 and 8 (to become 5) were unanimously approved by the Caucus.

Senator Kalter:  Alright, those were easy.  Let’s move actually backwards.  We’re going to go through the appendices still.  I’m going to skip around here.  Let’s go to appendix 1.  This is the calendar for reappointment, promotion, tenure, etc., calendar stuff.  Do I have a motion to approve appendix 1?  
Motion: By Senator Stewart, seconded by Senator Hoelscher, to move Appendix 1 to action.

Senator Kalter:  Any debate on that one?  I do have a little bit of a friendly amendment on that one.  Under D, February 25th, I think there is supposed to be an article “a” where it says, “Faculty members’ last day to respond in writing or in person to DFSC/SFSC…” is there supposed to be an “a”?  In other words, “in person to a DFSC/SFSC evaluation?”  Or a “the”?  It’s a very minor point.

Dr. Catanzaro:  Either article would be acceptable.  For what it’s worth, I think “the” maybe.  

Senator Kalter:  Okay.  So, “Faculty members’ last day to respond in writing or in person to the DFSC/SFSC cumulative post tenure review evaluation and/or remediation plan.”  Yes?  The only other thing that I saw in there editorially was in E, April 15th, which was the one that got sort of rearranged.  It needs just a tiny bit more rearrangement.  Right now it reads, “Departments and schools shall submit reports to the provost with the dean’s signature of the final results of the faculty annual performance evaluation.”  I’m wondering if “of the final results of the faculty annual performance evaluation” should be moved to just after reports so that it would read, “Departments and schools shall submit reports of the final results of faculty annual performance evaluations to the provost with the dean’s signature listing those evaluators having unsatisfactory performance.”  Does that make better sense grammatically?  

Dr. Catanzaro:  That does, and I’m wondering, on the printed version I have it’s a little hard to see, do we need a comma after the word signature, “…with the dean’s signature” comma?  No?  Okay.

Senator Kalter:  I don’t think so.  Commas are often optional like that, but I did wonder why the chair and directors don’t sign one out of the department/school.  Is that something that usually should happen or no?

Dr. Catanzaro:  The idea is that the form is filled out by the department/school, the chair/director signs it, and then the dean needs to sign it.  So what we’re trying to do is, in a concise way, say they need to be in the provost’s office by the 15th.  So this is the challenge of active voice versus passive voice.  Because, you think of it as the deadline is about the form, and so that lends itself to passive voice, but then that gets confusing, and then we start to use active voice, and you’ve got to go through the whole change.

Senator Kalter:  Okay.  So it might be better just to leave out the signature of the chair/director even though it does happen.

Dr. Catanzaro:  Yeah, the form has a space for them to sign.

Senator Kalter:  Okay.  Great.  Are there any other observations on appendix 1?

Senator Alcorn:  This is another insanely minor point, but if you’re going to add the article on February 25th, in keeping with the February 15th, probably March 8th should also have an article added to it then, so “the DFSC/SFSC.”  See what I mean?

Senator Kalter:  So the one right below that?  

Senator Alcorn:  Yeah.

Senator Kalter:  So instead of beginning “DFSC/SFSC,” “the…”

Senator Alcorn:  Just for consistency.

Senator Kalter:  Okay.  Would that be a friendly amendment?

Senator Stewart:  Yes.

Senator Kalter:  And then that would actually help it to conform with February 15th which is right above it.

Senator Alcorn:  Right, that’s what I’m saying.

Senator Kalter:  Alright.  Thank you.  Any other observations, additions, debate?  

There was no further debate.  Appendix 1 was unanimously approved by the Caucus.
Senator Kalter:  Yes, Sam.

Dr. Catanzaro:  Just a quick point of order.  In the event that we find other instances of things like the missing “the” we were just discussing, do we need any kind of dispensation to just kind of take care of that as we finalize the formatting?

Senator Kalter:  I would change it and let us know, and we’ll just say, “Advisory item: They changed this.”

Dr. Catanzaro:  Thank you.

Senator Kalter:  Yes.  Thank you.  Alright.  Moving on to appendix 2.  Do I have a motion to approve appendix 2?  This is the one on university guidelines and criteria for faculty evaluation.  
Motion: By Senator Clark, seconded by Senator Alcorn, to move Appendix 2 to action.

So, you’ll see that this is the one that had a number of changes, most of them recommended by the other URC, the University Research Council.  I did have an e-mail conversation with Senator Houston because I was still a little bit unclear about the last sentence in the first paragraph which says, this is the one that we debated, “Department/schools must consider a demonstration of quality of accomplishment and a standard of excellence as they select guidelines and criteria for evaluation.”  I’m not sure I’m clear still on what they mean by that.  And, Senator Houston, would you want to—  Not Senator Houston but Professor Houston, did you want to say anything about that?

Professor Houston:  I believe that was originally a recommendation by the Senate.  Was that Senator Cox?

Senator Cox:  I’m trying to recall.  I know that I was concerned about “department’s review considering,” and I think we ironed that out in letting faculty know if any changes were made.  But I also remember being curious as to whether we could be more precise in terms of what “considering” means.  They’ve already established the guidelines.  They’re “considering” demonstration of complying with the guidelines, but I don’t know what that means, “considering” a demonstration.  Is it evaluating, perhaps?  As they select their guidelines, they are “considering” a demonstration.  I guess I don’t understand the conjunction of the department considering the demonstration of work as they select the guidelines to evaluate that work. 

Professor Houston:  I’m sorry, could you repeat that again?

Senator Cox:  Well, I see two ideas in that sentence.  I see that on one hand, the departments are thinking about, considering, coming up, evaluating a demonstration of the faculty’s performance.  But, they’re doing that as they’re selecting the guidelines for the evaluation.  So maybe just some clarity would help me understand what that means.

Professor Houston:  Well, this is as each department or school would establish or revise their guidelines.  So, this would happen preemptive to faculty then submitting their portfolios for review.

Dr. Catanzaro:  As I read it, and I was not present when this holdover language was originally written, but as I read it, I read it as a call for departments and schools to keep in mind that as they lay out what they think constitutes excellence they should think about how that can be assessed or operationalized or how each faculty member could produce material in support of their claim that I did excellent work in this area.

Senator Kalter:  I was tripping over the “consider” and “demonstration” also, Senator Cox.  So, it’s interesting that you saw that too, that that was where the confusion came in.  I’m wondering if this wording captures what you just said, Sam:  “Departments/schools must select guidelines and criteria for evaluation that guide faculty in how to demonstrate quality of accomplishment and achieve a standard of excellence.”  Is that what’s being said?  Is that accurate?

Dr. Catanzaro:  I’m not sure I could definitively answer it.  I think so.  And, I think in any case maybe Caucus can decide whether that’s a desirable thing to state.  It sounds like it’s clearer than the current language, I will say that.

Professor Houston:  If I could say, it can be a little bit difficult to get our minds wrapped around, but one concept is the concept of the department or school establishing guidelines that essentially will allow a faculty to illustrate excellence in their performance, but what you just touched on, and I know we went back and forth on e-mail, which I think is a slightly different concept, but also could be important, and that is the extent to which the department or the DFSC would be instructing faculty on how to present their information in a way that adequately illustrates the guidelines.  So one are the guidelines themselves?  Are the guidelines conforming to what would be a standard of excellence?  The second concept then would be is the DFSC adequately advising the faculty as to how they can present their work in a way that meets those guidelines?  And I don’t believe that second concept is one that, up until this point, I don’t believe that was what we included.  But, it certainly sounds like an important idea.

Senator Kalter:  Since we’re past our hard stop time, let me not make the perfect the enemy of the good here and suggest, is there any debate on the rest of appendix 2, first of all?  Is there anything that anybody sees that they need to debate?

Senator Daddario:  On page 6 under factors used for evaluation of teaching, the word reaction still exists, and we had brought this up originally the first time, which is that “student reaction to teaching performance” is pretty vague.  

Senator Kalter:  Currently the URC has a subcommittee working on that question.  They’re not going to be ready by the end of this year, but they are still considering it.  So that will come probably sometime next year.

Professor Houston:  That one we are carrying over because we did feel like we actually wanted to do some research, look at some best practices for that issue.

Senator Daddario:  So as a point of order, how would that work here, then, in terms of voting through this?

Senator Kalter:  Well, we can decide to change that wording if we like.  I wouldn’t recommend that we do that right now.

Senator Daddario:  No, not if there’s a committee.

Senator Kalter:  I think it would be best to wait for their, since it was a big question, it would be courteous to wait and simply accept that that’s the current language.

Senator Daddario:  Okay.

Senator Kalter:  Knowing that it is being looked at.

Senator Daddario:  Okay.

Senator Kalter:  Is there any other debate on this particular article beyond that last sentence in the first paragraph?  What I would suggest then is that we vote on this one, and if there is tinkering with that one sentence that the URC can bring that back to us at some point so that it is clear.  Even though right now I think that sentence is a little bit unclear, it’s no more unclear than the one that’s in there right now, that’s in the current booklet.  So does that seem like a good plan to just vote up or down on it right now?

Senator Daddario:  Sure.

Appendix 2 was unanimously approved by the Caucus.

Senator Kalter:  Alright.  We are going to have a motion to adjourn, and we’ll continue this.  Article XIII will come up next time.  

Adjournment
Motion: By Senator Daddario, seconded by Senator Ellerton, to adjourn. The motion was unanimously approved.

Senator Kalter:  Alright, thanks so much everybody.    

